
______ 1 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

DESOTO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

JESSIE MEDLIN, PRESIDENT, 2012 PRESIDING 
 

February 13, 2012 
 
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 
The February 13, 2012 meeting of the DeSoto County Board of Supervisors was called to 
order by Supervisor Jessie Medlin, Board President. 

 
Sheriff Bill Rasco of the DeSoto County Sheriff’s Department was present and did open the 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors meeting in a regular session to hear all business to 
come before the Board.  The following were present: 

  
       Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------------District 1 
   Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------------District 2   
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------------District 3  
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------------District 4  

   Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------------District 5    
   W. E. Sluggo Davis---------------------------Chancery Clerk 
   Michael Garriga-------------------------------County Administrator 
   Tony Nowak ----------------------------------Board Attorney 
   Sheriff Bill Rasco-----------------------------Sheriff 
 
 

B.  INVOCATION 
 

Deputy Carl Hurt presented the invocation. 
 

 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 
 

Supervisor Harvey Lee requested to add County Line Road to the Agenda.  Supervisor Lee 
said about 75% of the road is in DeSoto County and he is receiving a lot of complaints 
about the condition of the road which is not maintained by DeSoto County. 
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga said he would like to add an item about a hearing on 
Senate Bill 3100 regarding Section 3100 housing being held in the Chancery Court Building 
in Jackson.  Mr. Garriga said it would be held February 16th at 1:30 p.m. and said if the 
Board desires, he would attend the meeting. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the motion 
to authorize the County Administrator to travel to Jackson on February 16th to attend the 
hearing on Senate Bill 3100 regarding Section 3100 housing.    The motion passed by a vote 
as follows: 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the motion 
to approve the Agenda and addition of County Line Road.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows: 



______ 2 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

E.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 9:00 a.m. – PLANNING DIRECTOR INTERVIEWS 
 

The executive session portion of these minutes is recorded under the portion of the minutes 
called “Executive Session”. 
 

F.  OLD BUSINESS  
 

1. Consideration of Agreement with Irb Benjamin for Legislative Services related to 
Legislation Authorizing Sheriff’s Department Use of Radar  
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga presented a proposed agreement with Irb 
Benjamin related to legislation for the use of radar in counties with a population greater 
than 100,000. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell suggested that the county move forward with efforts to pass this 
legislation. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if any other counties are participating.  Supervisor 
Russell said five other counties are interested and there may be others acting 
independently, and DeSoto County is investigating to see if they want to participate with 
us.   
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if the other counties would pay a portion of Mr. 
Benjamin’s fee.  Mr. Garriga said Rankin County does not have a County Administrator 
and the Harrison County Administrator said their sheriff had mentioned participating 
with DeSoto County, but he is not sure if they are ready to proceed with participating 
with our choice for the consultant.  
 
Supervisor Russell suggested scheduling meetings to move forward with the legislation. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked if the money would come from the Sheriff’s budget.  
Mr. Garriga said the Sheriff has not indicated it would come from his budget. 
 
Supervisor Russell suggested adding language that there would be no payment of fees 
unless the legislation is successful. 
 
Supervisor Medlin said the Sheriff says that radar would prevent people from getting 
killed in car wrecks. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said he agreed with the Sheriff‘s use of radar, but was not optimistic 
this plan would be successful. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to draft a 
contract including a phrase that Mr. Benjamin would only be paid if his lobbying efforts 
are successful and to otherwise agree to the terms in the proposal letter.   The motion 
passed by a vote as follows: 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------NO 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he agrees with using radar, but does not agree paying a fee 
for lobbying efforts 



______ 3 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

 
2. Emergency Services:  Authorize Board Attorney to Review Hazardous  

Mitigation Plan 
 

Board Attorney Tony Nowak said Chief Bobby Storey requested him to review the 
Hazardous Mitigation Plan, which is renewed every five years.    
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the 
motion to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to review 
the Hazardous Mitigation for Emergency Services.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows: 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

G.  NEW BUSINESS    
 

1. Regional Technology And Training Center:  Desoto County Schools  
 
a. Consideration to Allocate up to $150,000 (Fund 380-302-902) to DeSoto County 
Schools for the Purpose of a Regional Technology and Training Center  
 
b. Authorize Board Attorney Tony Nowak to Draft Memorandum of Agreement 
Between DeSoto County Board of Supervisors, DeSoto County Schools and City of 
Olive Branch for the Purpose of Allocating up to $150,000 for Regional Technology 
and Training Center  
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell recused herself from discussion on this issue and left the Board 
Room. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said lack of work force training is an issue in DeSoto County. 
 He said since the Schools have a facility on the west side of the county but not the east 
side of the county.  Supervisor Gardner stated that they want to meet with 
Representative Wanda Jennings to try to get legislation for money to make this happen 
and the Board of Education is requesting an allocation of $150,000.00 from the County. 
 Supervisor Gardner added that there are a lot of things that need to be done to make this 
happen and if the legislation is not successful, no money would be needed from the 
County. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion to approve an allocation if all parties agree 
and the legislation is approved for the purpose of building a technology training center 
on the east side of the county.  The motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said this money was authorized in the budget last year for 
Northwest Community College.   
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said the school district was not out of the project at that 
time.   
 
Supervisor Russell said he is not sure if Northwest is on board with this effort.  He said 
this would allow schools who are part of the agreement to send their students there.  He 
asked if Northwest can participate in the agreement.  Mr. Nowak said yes.   
 
Supervisor Gardner said Northwest may want to participate later, but he was not sure 
they were ready to participate now.   
 
Supervisor Russell suggested stating in the motion to specify money would be donated 
with the understanding Northwest Community College would be a partner in the project 



______ 4 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

later. 
 
Mr. Nowak said the contract could always be amended later. 
 
Supervisor Russell said he did not think they should donate to the school system for 
public education because he does not think this Board should be part of that function.  
He said if Northwest would be a partner from the beginning, he would vote for the 
funding. 
 
Mr. Nowak explained that there is another program for people who are 18 years of age 
and older and he offered to request an attorney general’s opinion on a program working 
with youth as well as adults.  Mr. Nowak said the Board could move forward and add 
Northwest later if they choose to do so. 

 
Supervisor Russell said he thought the program was for students and adults and not just 
students.  He said that is important to him. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said not all school children would go to college and this is a 
good opportunity for them to get into the Vo-Tech Program, but he also wanted to make 
sure it would be a one-time contribution.  He said right now, children on the east side of 
the County have to travel to the west side to attend Vo-Tech, and that takes a lot of 
travel time. 
 
Supervisor Russell said, if it is strictly Vo-Tech and for High School students, then the 
School System needs to fund it.   
 
Supervisor Medlin said someone just out of high school is not trained to go to work and 
some graduates do not go to college.   
 
Mr. Nowak said the Board could approve the agreement for the allocation, and then it 
would come back to the Board if that did not happen. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott 
and Nowak Law Firm to request an attorney general’s opinion for specific guidelines for 
the program, and authorize the County Administrator to contact the School Board to 
clarify their intentions regarding a training facility and to see if it is limited to only high 
schools.   
 
There was no second to the motion. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made a motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve an allocation to DeSoto County Schools up to $150,000.00 from fund 
380-302-902 for the purpose of a Regional Technology Training Center as a one-time 
contribution and to authorize the Board Attorney to draft a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Board of Supervisors, the City of Olive Branch, the DeSoto 
County School System, and to authorize the Board Attorney to request an Attorney 
General’s opinion regarding whether Northwest Community College could be involved 
with the student program, and  with the understanding that Northwest Community 
College or the Mississippi Department of Employment Security can participate at a later 
date to provide job training.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------NO 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------
RECUSED 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell said, although he would be happy to support a tax increase from 
the Board of Education to fund the program, he cannot support the BOS funding the 
initiative for students only. If it included those 18 and over as well as students he would 



______ 5 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

support the motion by vote. 
 
 

H.  OTHER ISSUES 
 

1. County Line Road 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said he received several complaints from citizens regarding the 
maintenance and condition of a section of County Line Road.  Supervisor Lee said the 
DeSoto County maintains one side of the road and there is an agreement with Tate 
County to maintain the other side of the road.  Supervisor Lee said it appears from our 
GIS report about 70-75% of the road is in DeSoto County.  Supervisor Lee explained 
that there are potholes and conditions on the road that make it in a much worse condition 
than the other part of the road and he has watched a DeSoto County school bus traveling 
on the road and the road is in terrible condition.  Supervisor Lee said he stepped in a 
pothole and that was almost knee deep and it needs to be repaired. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said that it is the only road in the County with that type of 
agreement.  He said we fix all of the other county line Roads. 
 
Supervisor Lee said we need to get an updated agreement with Tate County to allow 
DeSoto County to maintain this roadway. 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said the statute allows counties to maintain county line 
roads, but there need to be an agreement in place.   
 
Road Manager Russell Dorris said it would cost $94,574.00 to overlay this roadway. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the 
motion to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to draft an 
agreement with Tate County allowing DeSoto County to do the repairs and to handle the 
matter in any manner necessary to bring DeSoto County maintenance into legal 
compliance and to authorize the Road Manager to overlay County Line Road from 
Alphaba to Smith Road.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

 
2.  Roads – Sidewinder Road 

 
Road Manager Russell Dorris said the City of Hernando met Tuesday night and they 
presented a list of streets to overlay and $200,000 in money.  He said Sidewinder was 
not included on the list. 
 
 

3.  Culverts 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he understood the county could install culverts when 
maintaining driveway culverts, but could not put any type of cover on them.    
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said the county needs to get an understanding of the 
difference in putting a cover on the culvert as opposed to putting something on the 
culvert to hold it in place. 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to hire the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to request an 
Attorney General’s opinion regarding sufficient covers for holding culverts in place on 



______ 6 02/13/2012 
J.M. 

driveways when county maintenance affects the driveway entrance.  The motion passed 
by a vote as follows: 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey seconded the motion to 
recess the meeting until February 21, 2012 at 9:00 a.m.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows: 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell--------------- YES 

      Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

THIS the 13th day of February 2012, these minutes have been read and approved by the DeSoto 
County Board of Supervisors. 
 
      
    
 _________________________________ 

Jessie Medlin, President 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors 
 


